## TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE TOWN BOARD MEETING SEPTEMBER 06, 2022

## I. ADMINISTRATIVE

- A. Notice of the meeting was posted at the Town Hall and on the Town's web site. Town Chair Kris Hampton, and Supervisors Mike Fonger, Steve Anders, Kristi Williams and Mike DuPlayee were present, along with Clerk Kim Banigan, Deputy Clerk Amber Steele, Treasurer Debra Abel, and Highway Superintendent Dan Dresen.
- B. Hampton called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.
- C. Discuss/Consider approval of minutes of previous meeting(s): **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to approve the minutes of the public hearing and Town Board meeting on August 15, 2022 as printed. **MOTION CARRIED 4-0-1** (Fonger abstained).
- D. Finance Report and Approval of Bills:
  - 1. **MOTION** by DuPlayee/Fonger to approve checks #36654-35725 as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
  - 2. **MOTION** by Anders/Williams to approve payment of August per diems as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- E. Public Concerns: None.
- F. Road Right of Way Permits: Dresen reported that he has issued four permits since the last meeting: 1) Alliant Energy/Intercon Construction to replace electric cable at Bass Ln and Gladview Rd. 2) Charter/Unite Utility to install conduit on north side of Lane St. 3) Charter/Unite Utility to install cable on Whiting Rd 4) Charter/Unite Utility to install new service at 3589 Vilas Rd.

## II. BUSINESS

- A. Consideration of funding source for \$22,307.60 of chip sealing on Vilas and Coffeytown Roads: MOTION by DuPlayee/Williams to use ARPA funds. MOTION CARRIED 5-0.
- Β. Plan Commission Recommendations: Donald Viney, Applicant, Viney Acres, LLC, Owner of parcel #0711-311-8010-0, 32.643 acres zoned FP-1 on Siggelkow Road: Proposing to rezone 2.672 acres to RR-2 and transfer a RDU from parcel #0711-363-9020-0 to create a singlefamily residence (DCPREZ-2022-11889): The Plan Commission's recommendation included a requirement for Mr. Viney to consult with Dresen about how much land should be dedicated as right-of-way for future changes to smooth out the curve on Siggelkow Road. Dresen had obtained emailed advice from Town Engineer Nick Bubolz to move the beginning of curvature points approximately 75' with a radius around 120' to achieve a design curve of 25 mph. (See Exhibit A). Discussion was to draw a diagonal between the new points rather than a curve. MOTION by Williams/Anders to accept the Plan Commission's recommendation to approve the proposed lot, transferring a RDU from parcel #0711-363-9020-0. The farm on Schadel Road and the balance of parcel 0711-311-8010-0 must be deed restricted against further residential development. Right-of-way on the curve of Siggelkow Road to be dedicated as per Exhibit A, moving the curvature points each by 75' with a straight line rather than a curve between the two points. MOTION CARRIED 5-0.
- C. Discuss/Consider adoption of Resolution 2022-09-06a Acceptance of Public Improvements in Kennedy Hills Phase 1: Correspondence from Dane County Land and Water Resources and Town Engineer Nick Bubolz indicated all improvements have been completed in a satisfactory manner, and Dresen agreed that everything looks good. Bubolz noted that final construction costs for the park path have not been supplied, and that while monumentation

documentation has been verbally approved, he has not received any documents yet. **MOTION** by DuPlayee/Williams to adopt Resolution 2022-09-06a as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.** 

- D. Consideration of Waiver of Conflict of Interest for Axley Brynelson, LLP's continued representation of Enclave Development, LLC: **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to approve the waiver of conflict of interest. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- E. Consideration of request by Boy Scouts to camp behind Town Hall on September 9th and 10<sup>th</sup>: No one from the Boy Scouts was in attendance. **MOTION** by DuPlayee/Anders to table due to lack of information. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0**.
- F. Discuss/Consider adoption of Resolution 2022-09-06b Authorizing the borrowing of \$323,790.00, providing for the issuance and sale of a general obligation promissory note therefor; and levying a tax in connection therewith: This borrowing is to fund 2022 road maintenance projects. MOTION by Anders/DuPlayee to adopt Resolution 2022-09-06b as presented. MOTION CARRIED 5-0.
- G. Discuss/Consider adoption of Ordinance 2022-09-06 amending s. 08.03(1)(b) of the Town Code of Ordinances (Right-of-way permits): MOTION by Williams/DuPlayee to adopt Ordinance 2022-09-06 as presented. MOTION CARRIED 5-0. Right-of-way permit approvals will now be reported under the Public Works Department Activity Update agenda item.
- H. Consideration of attendees for Wisconsin Towns Association Annual Convention on October 9-11: There was no interest in attending.
- I. Consideration of attendees for Dane County Towns Association meeting on September 21<sup>st</sup>: All five board members plan to attend.
- J. Set dates for 2023 budget workshops: A workshop was scheduled for October 18<sup>th</sup> at 6:30 P.M., with subsequent dates of October 24 and 25<sup>th</sup> if needed.
- III. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY UPDATE: Dresen reported that all 2022 re-paving and seal coating projects are complete, and they are now working on center-striping. Both new bridges opened last Friday. Williams asked about the process used to notify residents of road projects, as she had received a complaint from a resident on Graham Paige Road. Dresen said signs are put out ahead of time, although notice from the contractors is not always very far in advance or specific.
- IV. CLERK'S OFFICE UPDATE: The Clerk reported that the recount for Congressional District 2 went smoothly and there were no changes to the originally reported results.
- V. BOARD REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
  - A. Hampton asked if anyone was interested in attending the Local Land Use Planning Presentations at the Town of Verona on September 10<sup>th</sup>. There was no interest. He and Dresen attended a pre-construction meeting for County AB/12&18 last Wednesday. Luds Lane is supposed to be extended by October 14<sup>th</sup>.
  - B. Williams reported that she attended the Agricultural Community Engagement Twilight Meeting at McFarlandale Dairy and was very impressed by the operation.
- VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS:

- A. Deer-Grove EMS Commission: Hampton reported the committee expects to complete the 2023 budget at the next meeting. They are still negotiating on the revisions to the district agreement.
- B. Cottage Grove Fire Department Committee: The district budget was approved; they will look at the ESOB budget at the September meeting. The Village is drafting the new district agreement.
- VII. ADJOURNMENT: **MOTION** by Anders/DuPlayee to adjourn. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.** The meeting ended at 8:10 P.M.

Kim Banigan, Clerk Approved 09-19-2022

